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�2nd Circuit finds nexus between property and trafficking in stolen auto parts. (160) Claim�ants owned an automotive salvage and repair shop and the land upon which the business was located. The government sought the forfeiture of the business and the land based on claimants' trafficking in VIN-altered auto parts and money laundering activities. The Second Circuit held that the government established probable cause to believe that there was a nexus between the property and the illegal conduct. An informant testified that he sold many stolen vehicles and components with removed VINs to the business. Numerous cars and parts found in the company's yard had VINs removed or altered, and the VINs found intact belonged to vehicles that had been reported stolen. Finally, a former bookkeeper testified to the company's irregular transactions with certain "suppliers" of parts. Claimants did not refute this evidence. U.S. v. All Assets of G.P.S. Automotive Corp., 66 F.3d 483 (2d Cir. 1995).�xe "U.S. v. All Assets of G.P.S. Automotive Corp., 66 F.3d 483 (2d Cir. 1995)."�





2nd Circuit says state ruling that U.S. had no ju�risdiction did not bar new forfeiture action. (160) Local police ini�tially im�pounded claim�ant's Jeep after he was ar�rested on drug charges. Claimant filed a mo�tion in state court under Vermont Rule 41(e) for return of the Jeep. Before the motion was de�cided, the federal government com�menced an adminis�trative for�feiture proceeding. The state court then granted claimant's motion for the return of the Jeep, con�cluding that nei�ther the state nor the federal govern�ment had an interest in the vehicle. Although the Jeep was returned to claimant, several days later DEA agents seized it again. The 2nd Circuit rejected claimant's ar�gument that the Ver�mont state court's determination that the fed�eral govern�ment had not established jurisdic�tion over the Jeep barred this second forfei�ture action. The state court merely ad�judicated claimant's rights in the vehicle as they were implicated by the state criminal proceeding. The state court did not, and could not, adjudicate the fed�eral govern�ment's interest in the Jeep as that interest arose un�der the federal forfeiture statutes. U.S. v. One 1987 Jeep Wrangler Au�to�mobile, 972 F.2d 472 (2d Cir. 1992).�xe "U.S. v. One 1987 Jeep Wrangler Au�to�mobile, 972 F.2d 472 (2d Cir. 1992)."�





3rd Circuit finds airplanes may be administratively forfeited regardless of their value. (160) The DEA sought adminis�trative forfeiture of a Lear jet used in transporting cocaine. The airplane owner’s insurance carrier paid his insurance claim for the airplane and then contested the forfeiture as his subrogee. The company asserted that, pursuant to 19 U.S.C. §1607, the DEA was obliged to employ judicial, rather than administrative, forfeiture proceedings whenever the value of the item at issue exceeded $500,000. The Third Circuit rejected this agument, finding that 1984 amendments to section 1607 expressly permitted administrative forfeiture of certain categories of assets, such as vehicles used in narcotics trafficking, in addition to assets with less than a stated value. Thus, this airplane was properly subject to administrative forfeiture. Yskamp v. Drug Enforcement Admin�istration, 163 F.3d 767 (3d Cir. 1998).�xe "Yskamp v. Drug Enforcement Administration, 163 F.3d 767 (3d Cir. 1998)."�





4th Circuit okays forfeiting cars as proceeds where indictment alleged facilitation. (160) Defendant pleaded guilty to drug trafficking crimes and agreed to forfeit certain vehicles. Defendant’s girlfriend challenged the forfeiture in a third-party claim under 21 U.S.C. ( 853. She argued, inter alia, that the district court erred in ordering forfeiture of the cars on the theory that they were purchased with drug trafficking proceeds when the indictment alleged they were forfeitable because used to facilitate drug trafficking. The Fourth Circuit held that the court was not limited by the theory asserted in the indictment. “[W]hether the property was forfeited because it facilitated [defendant’s] drug activities or was purchased from drug proceeds is irrelevant, as either prong justifies the forfeiture.” U.S. v. Holmes, 133 F.3d 918 (4th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished).�xe "U.S. v. Holmes, 133 F.3d 918 (4th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished)."� 





4th Circuit rules lack of judicial determina�tion of probable cause prior to seizure of vehi�cle did not vio�late 4th Amend�ment. (160) Upon the government's filing a forfeiture com�plaint, the district court clerk issued a warrant of arrest in rem, which serves to bring the res within the jurisdiction of the court and autho�rizes the government to seize the prop�erty. Defendant contended that the seizure of his vehicle pursuant to the warrant of arrest in rem violated the 4th Amendment because it was is�sued without a prior finding of probable cause. The 4th Circuit rejected this argument. When police have probable cause to believe a car contains contra�band, they may seize it without a prior judicial deter�mination of probable cause without violating the 4th Amendment. The justification for a warrantless seizure does not disappear merely because the vehicle has been im�pounded. In defendant's case, the po�lice officer ob�served drug paraphernalia and a white powder between the seat of defendant's vehicle. Since the officer had reasonable cause to believe that the vehicle contained contra�band, he was jus�tified in seizing the automobile without a warrant. Since probable cause for the war�rantless seizure did not dissipate, the lack of judicial de�termination of probable cause prior to seizure pursuant to the warrant of arrest in rem did not vio�late the 4th Amendment. U.S. v. Turner, 933 F.2d 240 (4th Cir. 1991).�xe "U.S. v. Turner, 933 F.2d 240 (4th Cir. 1991)."�





 5th Circuit says claimant has burden of proof once probable cause is established to seize car with missing VIN. (160) The government sought forfeiture of several vehicles under 18 U.S.C. §512, which provides for the forfeiture of any motor vehicle or vehicle part whose vehicle identification number (VIN) has been tampered with or removed. The 5th Circuit held that once the government established probable cause for the forfeiture of a vehicle under §512, the claimant bears the burden of proving a defense to the forfeiture. The plain language of section §512 incorporates the burden of proof provision of section §1615 of the "customs laws." The court rejected defendant's claim that the government had to establish that he knowingly tampered with or removed a VIN, or that he knew the vehicle was stolen. The attempt to incorporate a scienter requirement into the probable cause standard was simply an effort to subvert the burden-shifting approach approved here. U.S. v. 1988 Chevrolet Silverado, 16 F.3d 660 (5th Cir. 1994).�xe "U.S. v. 1988 Chevrolet Silverado, 16 F.3d 660 (5th Cir. 1994)."�





5th Circuit finds probable cause to forfeit vehicles with missing or altered VINs. (160) The government sought forfeiture of several vehicles under 18 U.S.C. §512, which provides for the forfeiture of any motor vehicle or vehicle part whose vehicle identification number (VIN) has been tampered with or removed. The 5th Circuit held that the government established probable cause for the seizure and forfeiture of several vehicles. Each of the seized vehicles bore altered VINs. In addition, each had alterations that were inherently suspicious. Two trucks had VINs that had been ground off and re-stamped, two trucks contained engines and transmissions with VINs indicating that the parts had been stolen, and one truck had a VIN plate on the dash that was counterfeit. Finally, there was testimony that these vehicles were part of the inventory of a "salvage and chop shop" operation purportedly run by claimant. U.S. v. 1988 Chevrolet Silverado, 16 F.3d 660 (5th Cir. 1994).�xe "U.S. v. 1988 Chevrolet Silverado, 16 F.3d 660 (5th Cir. 1994)."�





5th Circuit says selling vehicles and de�positing proceeds into Treasury did not deprive court of jurisdiction. (160) In a for�feiture action against several vehicles, the government argued that the appellate court lacked jurisdiction over three ve�hicles that were no longer in the custody of the U.S. Marshal Service. Relying on Republic Na�tional Bank v. U.S., 113 F.2d 554 (1992), the 5th Circuit affirmed that the government's disposition of the cars did not deprive it of ju�risdiction. Continued possession is not nec�essary to maintain jurisdiction in an in rem forfeiture action. The fiction of in rem forfei�ture were not developed to provide a prevail�ing party with a means of defeating its adver�sary's claim for redress. U.S. v. 1988 Oldsmobile Cutlass Supreme 2 Door, 983 F.2d 670 (5th Cir. 1993).�xe "U.S. v. 1988 Oldsmobile Cutlass Supreme 2 Door, 983 F.2d 670 (5th Cir. 1993)."�





5th Circuit rules that subsequent acquittal of some defendants did not undermine govern�ment's prob�able cause for forfeit�ure. (160) Six individuals were investigated in connection with structuring car pur�chases to evade currency reporting requirements. Three were eventually convicted, two acquit�ted, and one never indict�ed. The government initiated a forfei�ture action against the cars. The 5th Circuit upheld summary judgment in favor of the government. The government presented bank records, documen�tation from various car dealerships, and evidence of the other claimants' convictions for structuring the transactions to show probable cause for the forfei�ture. Given the quality and quantity of this evidence, the subsequent acquittal of two of the claimants did not undermine the probable cause finding. The mere pendency of the appeals of the three convicted claimants were insufficient to cast doubt on the exis�tence of probable cause. U.S. v. 1988 Oldsmobile Cutlass Supreme 2 Door, 983 F.2d 670 (5th Cir. 1993).�xe "U.S. v. 1988 Oldsmobile Cutlass Supreme 2 Door, 983 F.2d 670 (5th Cir. 1993)."�





5th Circuit upholds forfeiture of claimant's car pur�chased with boyfriend's drug money. (160) The gov�ernment alleged that the claimant's boyfriend, a con�victed drug dealer, had given her the money to from the proceeds of his illicit drug trafficking purchase the au�tomobile. The government show�ed that the girlfriend earned only $700 per month and pur�chased the car in July 1986 with a $9,000 down payment. Her check was returned for insuffi�cient funds, and she then made the down pay�ment in cash in small bills. She paid the bal�ance in January 1988 with a check for $8,300. That money came from a deposit the day be�fore. Her largest prior de�posit had been $300. There was also testimony that the boyfriend had said that he bought the car for the claimant. The 5th Circuit held that this evi�dence was sufficient to sup�port the trial judge's finding that the car was forfeitable to the gov�ernment. U.S. v. One 1986 Nis�san Maxima GL., 895 F.2d 1063 (5th Cir. 1990). �xe "U.S. v. One 1986 Nis�san Maxima GL., 895 F.2d 1063 (5th Cir. 1990). "�





6th Circuit says lessee of seized automobile has no right to pre-deprivation hearing. (160) Police searched a BMW that was leased by plaintiff, but driven by a friend to whom plaintiff had loaned the car. Upon recovering evidence of illegal gambling, the police seized the vehicle and held it as evidence and for possible forfeiture. Plaintiff sought unsuccess�fully to secure return of the car and then filed an action against police and local prosecutors under 42 U.S.C. §1983, alleging, inter alia, denial of a due process right to a pre-deprivation hearing. The Sixth Circuit held that there was no such right because of “the necessity for quick action” in case of easily moveable automobiles, and because plaintiff had adequate avenues of post-deprivation relief available to him under state law which he did not pursue. Summary judgment for the defendants was properly granted. Wagner v. Umpleby, 149 F.3d 1185 (6th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished).�xe "Wagner v. Umpleby, 149 F.3d 1185 (6th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished)."� 





6th Circuit holds forfeiture of vehicle im�proper when owners' intent was not to sup�port aliens' illegal pres�ence. (160) Claimants' auto�mobile was forfeited after an INS agent discov�ered undocumented Salvadorans in the car. The district court ordered the vehicle forfeited un�der 8 U.S.C §1324 (b)(1). The 6th Circuit re�versed, and held that the pur�pose of the claimant's transportation from Texas to Ken�tucky was not to sup�port their illegal pres�ence, even though that may have been the ul�timate effect of their actions. Thus, the vehi�cle did not transport aliens, "in furtherance of vio�lation of law" (i.e. illegal entry). Inter�preting the meaning of the "furtherance" clause, the court chose an "intent" test over an "effects" test. Because the government had failed to prove the claimant's intent was to aid the illegal presence of the aliens, summary judg�ment was im�proper. U.S. v. 1982 Ford Pick-up, 873 F.2d 947 (6th Cir. 1989).�xe "U.S. v. 1982 Ford Pick-up, 873 F.2d 947 (6th Cir. 1989)."�





7th Circuit approves forfeiture of vehicle driven to and from meeting with proposed drug courier. (160) Claimant met with an undercover agent to pay him $10,000 to act as a courier and transport heroin from the Philip�pines to Chicago. The 7th Circuit re�versed the district court's determination that the ve�hicle claimant drove to and from the meeting with the "courier" could not be for�feited under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(4). Defen�dant facilitated the attempted transportation, receipt, and possession of illegal drugs, thus bringing the car within the statute's grasp. The court rejected the district court's conclu�sion that the term "facilitate" connotes causa�tion. This interpretation would render the statute impo�tent, requiring proof of the im�possible--that it was es�sential that the of�fender use his own car rather than a rental car. Defense counsel conceded that if a sale had taken place at the meeting, the automo�bile would be forfeitable. A distinction be�tween the meeting at which the plot is hatched and the meeting at which the drug changes hands would be arbitrary. U.S. v. 1990 Toyota 4Runner, 9 F.3d 651 (7th Cir. 1993).�xe "U.S. v. 1990 Toyota 4Runner, 9 F.3d 651 (7th Cir. 1993)."�





7th Circuit finds no jurisdiction over car where federal agents failed to obtain turnover order from the state. (160) The 7th Circuit held that under U.S. v. One 1979 Chevrolet C-20 Van, 924 F.2d 120 (7th Cir. 1991), the district court lacked in rem juris�diction over a seized Mercedes because fed�eral authorities failed to obtain a turnover or�der from the circuit court of the county in which the car was seized. The fact that state forfeiture proceedings were never instituted was not relevant; the holding of C-20 Van did not depend on the existence of the competing state forfeiture proceeding. An amendment to the Illinois forfeiture statute was not rele�vant since the amendments occurred after the unauthorized transfer of the car from local police to federal authorities. Finally, C-20 Van is not inconsistent with Supreme Court caselaw. None of the cases cited by the gov�ernment involved a federal forfeiture action in competition with state court authority over the disposition of a res. U.S. v. One 1987 Mercedes Benz Roadster 560 SEC, 2 F.3d 241 (7th Cir. 1993).�xe "U.S. v. One 1987 Mercedes Benz Roadster 560 SEC, 2 F.3d 241 (7th Cir. 1993)."�





7th Circuit finds local police had no authority to trans�fer van to federal authorities for for�feiture. (160) At the request of local police, the FBI began administrative forfeiture pro�ceedings against defendant's van, and the van was transferred to FBI custody. Several months later, the state of Illi�nois filed a forfei�ture complaint in state court. A month later, a federal forfeiture action was filed. The state then voluntarily dismissed its action, and the federal court ordered the vehi�cle forfeited. On appeal, the 7th Circuit reversed, ruling that the transfer of the van to federal authorities vio�lated Illinois forfei�ture statutes. At the time the federal complaint was filed, the state court had exclusive jurisdiction over the van, notwithstanding the fed�eral government's posses�sion of it. The fact that the federal au�thorities "muscled in" on the van and began an ad�ministrative forfeiture proceeding before the state court ac�tion was filed did not confer ju�risdiction on the federal court, nor did the state's voluntary dismissal result in the loss of state juris�diction. U.S. v. One 1979 Chevrolet C-20 Van, 924 F.2d 120 (7th Cir. 1991).�xe "U.S. v. One 1979 Chevrolet C-20 Van, 924 F.2d 120 (7th Cir. 1991)."�





7th Circuit upholds criminal forfeiture of money and Mercedes in continuing criminal enterprise despite erroneous jury instruction on the government’s burden of proof. (160) Al�though the government was not required to prove be�yond a reasonable doubt that defen�dant's assets were subject to forfeiture, the jury was instructed using the reasonable doubt standard and the 7th Circuit used that standard to analyze the evidence. Even with that height�ened burden however, the court concluded that the jury could have rea�sonably found that the money seized from de�fendant's apartment was intended to be used to pay for cocaine. As for the Mercedes, the evi�dence showed that the defendant used the Mercedes to meet with co�caine dealing associ�ates and to drive to his office on a daily basis. The office had no legitimate use and con�tained 200 grams of cocaine and assorted other items in�cluding empty plastic bags containing cocaine residue. U.S. v. Pace, 898 F.2d 1218 (7th Cir. 1990).�xe "U.S. v. Pace, 898 F.2d 1218 (7th Cir. 1990)."�





8th Circuit holds that forfeiture of automobile occurs at the time of the unlawful act, even when the seizure occurs some�time later. (160) The defendant moved to suppress evi�dence seized in a war�rantless search of his Mercedes automobile. The district judge denied the motion on the ground, inter alia, that there was reason to be�lieve the Mercedes was forfeitable because it facilitated drug trafficking. The 8th Circuit agreed, noting that the in�formant testified that defendant had delivered co�caine to him while driving the Mercedes on five or six occa�sions. "A forfeiture occurs at the time of the unlawful act, al�though the seizure may not occur until sometime later." Defendant did not rebut this evidence, but characterized it as an "after the fact rationalization." Nevertheless the court held that this "unrebutted showing of probable cause sup�ports the government's claim that the car was properly seized as it was subject to forfeiture." U.S. v. Walker, 900 F.2d 1201 (8th Cir. 1990).�xe "U.S. v. Walker, 900 F.2d 1201 (8th Cir. 1990)."�





8th Circuit rules possession of cocaine on per�son while driving auto�mobile is sufficient to forfeit car. (160) Defendant was arrested on an outstanding warrant while driving his au�tomobile. He attempted to discard a vial of cocaine, but was pre�vent�ed from doing so. The car was forfeited and the defendant appealed. The Eighth Circuit affirmed. Pos�session of any amount of cocaine on one's person while driv�ing an auto establishes "a suf�ficient connection between the drug and the car to justify forfei�ture under the civil forfeiture statute." Sum�mary judgment for the government was proper given the undisputed facts. U.S. v. One 1980 Red Ferrari, 875 F.2d 186 (8th Cir. 1989).�xe "U.S. v. One 1980 Red Ferrari, 875 F.2d 186 (8th Cir. 1989)."�





9th Circuit suggests INS vehicle forfeiture regulations violate due process. (160) Plaintiffs, whose vehicles had been seized pursuant to 8 U.S.C. §1324(b) for alleged immigration violations, brought a class action claiming that INS vehicle forfeiture regulations and practices were unconstitutional. The district court refused to certify the class, dismissed the constitutional claims on grounds of lack of jurisdiction and waiver, and in the case of the Eighth Amendment claims, on the merits. The Ninth Circuit reversed, strongly suggesting that INS vehicle forfeiture regulations are unconstitutional, both facially and as applied. Unlike the customs regulations followed in other areas of forfeiture, INS regulations do not require (and the INS does not provide) notice of the specific statute alleged to have been violated or of the factual basis for the seizure. Also, vehicle owners who opt for administrative rather than judicial review of seizures receive only a “personal interview” with an INS official, rather than a more complete adversarial hearing, and if the vehicle is forfeited, no statement of reasons is provided. The appellate panel said jurisdiction existed to consider these issues even though plaintiffs opted for administrative rather than judicial forfeiture. It remanded to reconsider the merits and the class certification. Judge Reavely dissented, arguing that plaintiffs waived their right to judicial review of these forfeitures by opting for administrative forfeiture proceedings. Gete v. Immigration and Naturalization Service, 121 F.3d 1285 (9th Cir. 1997).�xe "Gete v. Immigration and Naturalization Service, 121 F.3d 1285 (9th Cir. 1997)."�





9th Circuit says using truck to pick up profits from drug sales gave probable cause for forfeiture. (160) The informant said that after he sold the drugs on the East Coast, he met with the claimant in California and delivered the profits to him. The claimant drove away in his pickup after receiving the money. When the government sought to forfeit the truck, claimant argued that the use of the truck to drive to the meeting in California did not "facilitate" the sale of the drugs on the East Coast within the meaning of the forfeiture statute, 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(4). The Ninth Circuit found nothing in the statute to indicate that a vehicle used to transport a participant to carry away the proceeds of an earlier distribution is beyond the reach of §881. Accordingly, the government had probable cause to file a forfeiture complaint. U.S. v. One 1986 Ford Pickup, CA License No. 2W03753, 56 F.3d 1181 (9th Cir. 1995).�xe "U.S. v. One 1986 Ford Pickup, CA License No. 2W03753, 56 F.3d 1181 (9th Cir. 1995)."�





9th Circuit says car used to export currency could not be forfeited where charges were dismissed. (160) The claimant failed to report one million dollars in currency in the trunk of his car when he crossed the border into Canada. He was charged with violating the currency reporting statute, 31 U.S.C. §5312, 5316, but was allowed to plead guilty to a lesser offense. Since the lack of a currency con�viction prevented the government from forfeiting the car under §5317 and 18 U.S.C. §982, it relied on 22 U.S.C. §401, which does not require a conviction, and provides for the forfeiture of vehicles used in ex�porting "any arms or munitions of war or other arti�cles in violation of law." On appeal, the 9th Circuit reversed, holding that permitting the government to use §401 would undermine the forfeiture pro�visions of 31 U.S.C. §5316 and 18 U.S.C. §982. Section 982 requires a conviction of violating §5316 as a prerequisite to the forfeiture of cars used in illegally exporting currency. U.S. v. One 1985 Mercedes-Benz, 300 SD, 14 F.3d 465 (9th Cir. 1994).�xe "U.S. v. One 1985 Mercedes-Benz, 300 SD, 14 F.3d 465 (9th Cir. 1994)."�





9th Circuit holds that forfeiture of helicopter under the Airborne Hunting Act was discre�tionary. (160) The claimants used a helicopter to harass bighorn sheep in vio�lation of the Air�borne Hunting Act, 16 U.S.C. §742j-1. All aircraft, guns or other equipment used in violation of this statute are subject to forfeiture to the United States. The 9th Circuit held that the wording of the Act and its legislative his�tory made it clear that the forfeiture was dis�cretionary. Here, the district court was "justi�fia�bly disturbed by the con�duct of the gov�ernment during the investigation and prose�cution of this case." Accordingly the court did not abuse its discretion in denying forfeiture of the helicopter. U.S. v. One Bell Jet Ranger II Helicopter, 943 F.2d 1121 (9th Cir. 1991).�xe "U.S. v. One Bell Jet Ranger II Helicopter, 943 F.2d 1121 (9th Cir. 1991)."�





9th Circuit holds plane was not "fitted out for smug�gling" and was not subject to forfeiture. (160) In this amended opinion, the 9th Circuit rejected the gov�ernment's argument that the aircraft was subject to for�feiture under 19 U.S.C. §1703. As�suming without de�cid�ing that §1703 applies to air�craft, the court held that none of the requirements for forfeiture were met. There was no evi�dence that the claimant failed to display his lights or failed to comply with an order to stop his air�plane. Moreover the gov�ernment failed to estab�lish probable cause to believe that the plane was fitted out for smuggling. Although it had been altered, it was done with FAA ap�proval. U.S. v. Dickerson, 873 F.2d 1181 (9th Cir. 1989).�xe "U.S. v. Dickerson, 873 F.2d 1181 (9th Cir. 1989)."�





9th Circuit allows forfeiture of illegally-seized property if probable cause is shown by untaint�ed evidence. (160) Probable cause for forfeiture requires "less than prima facie proof but more than mere suspi�cion." The district court based its finding on the dis�covery of a large sum of money, the transport of drugs in the vehicles, defendant's prior record, the purchase of the automobile with cash, and the lack of an ade�quate ex�plan�ation for these facts other than defendant's involve�ment with nar�cotics traf�ficking. Judges Beezer, Nelson and Hall held that even though the court failed to specify whether all of these facts were known at the time of the seizure, the vehicle was still subject to forfeiture if probable cause was demon�strated by untainted evidence. Here the valid�ity of the evidence was unquestioned. U.S. v. One 1985 Cadillac Seville, 866 F.2d 1142 (9th Cir. 1989).�xe "U.S. v. One 1985 Cadillac Seville, 866 F.2d 1142 (9th Cir. 1989)."�





9th Circuit holds that transportation of aliens was only incidentally connected to violation of law. (160) Defen�dant's van was forfeited under 8 U.S.C. §1324(b) on the basis that it had been used to transport aliens to further their illegal presence in the United States. The aliens were being transported from one job site to an�other to perform a con�tract for reforesta�tion. The 9th Circuit held that the transporta�tion here did not amount to transportation in fur�therance of violation of the law. The judg�ment of forfeiture was reversed. U.S. v. One 1984 Ford Van, 826 F.2d 918 (9th Cir. 1987).�xe "U.S. v. One 1984 Ford Van, 826 F.2d 918 (9th Cir. 1987)."�





10th Circuit says display of seized car as DARE vehicle outside courthouse did not fatally prejudice defendant. (160) The police forfeited the defendant’s Cadillac and used it in the community DARE program. (DARE is the acronym for Drug Abuse Resistance Program, an anti-drug education program organized and operated by many local police agencies in schools across the country.) The police painted the defendant's car with flames, placed DARE stickers on it, and inscribed it with the words, “Seized from a local drug dealer by [the local police department].” The car was parked outside the courthouse during defendant’s trial (though there was dispute about whether the jury could see it). The court of appeals held that the government's conduct in placing the vehicle outside the courthouse, while “not exemplary,” was not cause for reversing defendant’s conviction. The evidence against defendant was overwhelming and there was no showing that placing the Cadillac near the courthouse prejudiced the defendant's case. U.S. v. Pewitte, 166 F.3d 349 (10th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished).�xe "U.S. v. Pewitte, 166 F.3d 349 (10th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished)."�





10th Circuit affirms probable cause for forfeiture of cash and vehicles based on hid�den currency and drug parapherna�lia. (160) The 10th Circuit af�firmed the dis�trict court's determina�tion that there was probable cause to forfeit cash found in claimant's home and several vehicles owned by claimant. The unusually large amount of hidden currency ($149,442) and presence of drug parapher�nalia, including packaging supplies and drug nota�tions re�flecting large drug transactions, established a sufficient nexus between the property and claimant's involvement in drug trafficking. Claimant did not es�tablish that the money was from legitimate sources. The vehicles were also properly subject to forfeiture. One contained a loaded pistol and a notebook con�taining drug notations, which indicated that it had been used to facilitate drug trafficking. Moreover, a sufficient nexus was established between the pur�chase of the vehicles with cash and claim�ant's in�volvement in illegal drug transactions. Although the government did not tie the vehicles to a specific drug transaction, both were purchased with cash during the years when the district court found that claimants had failed to demon�strate legitimate alternate sources of income large enough to account for their cash ex�penditures. U.S. v. One Hundred Forty-Nine Thou�sand Four Hundred Forty-Two and 43/100 Dollars ($149,442.43), 965 F.2d 868 (10th Cir. 1992).�xe "U.S. v. One Hundred Forty-Nine Thou�sand Four Hundred Forty-Two and 43/100 Dollars ($149,442.43), 965 F.2d 868 (10th Cir. 1992)."�





11th Circuit rules there was sufficient probable cause to support seizure of car. (160) In a forfei�ture action brought under the customs law, 19 U.S.C. §1595a, the 11th Circuit re�versed the district court's de�termination that there was no probable cause to seize claimant's vehi�cle. The United States bears the same burden of proving prob�able cause in actions under the customs laws as it does in actions under 21 U.S.C. §881. A car is considered di�rectly involved in a drug transaction when it is used to transport an individ�ual to the place where a drug transac�tion takes place even though it is not used to transport money or drugs. Here, there was evidence that plaintiff used the car to trans�port a co-conspira�tor and cash to the airport to catch a flight to the Philippines, where the co-conspirator would use the cash to obtain heroin and then smug�gle it back into the United States. This alone was sufficient to find probable cause. Nnadi v. Richter, 976 F.2d 682 (11th Cir. 1992).�xe "Nnadi v. Richter, 976 F.2d 682 (11th Cir. 1992)."�





11th Circuit, en banc, reverses summary judgment in favor of claimant in forfeiture action against a bulldozer. (160) In an en banc decision the 11th Circuit reversed a summary judgment in favor of claimant in a forfeiture ac�tion against a bulldozer. The government showed that a con�victed drug dealer with no legal means of support pur�chased the bulldozer with $65,000 in cash. The drug dealer used the bulldozer for his own pur�poses, kept it on his prop�erty, and led others to believe that it was his. Claimant re�butted this showing with testi�mony that a dealer had pur�chased the bulldozer on claimant's behalf for claimant's log�ging business, that the bulldozer was de�preciated by the logging business in its state and fed�eral in�come tax returns, and that claimant permitted the dealer to use the bulldozer for his own pur�poses because the dealer oper�ated the bulldozer in claimant's logging business with�out com�pensation. How�ever, there were in�ternal inconsistencies with claimant's story and a jury could choose to disbelieve the ex�planation. The uncontested facts reasonably sug�gested that the dealer bought the bulldozer with the pro�ceeds of drug trans�actions. Whether claimant's expla�nation should be believed was a question for the jury, not the district court. Several judges dissented, finding the government failed to produce suffi�cient evidence. U.S. v. Four Parcels of Real Property in Greene and Tuscaloosa Counties, 941 F.2d 1428 (11th Cir. 1991) (en banc).�xe "U.S. v. Four Parcels of Real Property in Greene and Tuscaloosa Counties, 941 F.2d 1428 (11th Cir. 1991) (en banc)."�





11th Circuit holds yacht intended for use in drug traf�ficking is subject to forfeiture. (160) The 11th Circuit held that the mere fact that the yacht was the site of dis�cussions concerning pre�sent and future drug deals would not make it forfeit�able. However, it was forfeitable be�cause initial steps were made to modify the yacht for that purpose. Noting that the gov�ernment need only make the minimal show�ing that the yacht be "intended for use" in a drug trans�action, the court held that the claimant's stated intention to use the yacht for that pur�pose qualified the yacht for forfei�ture, even though he never actually used the yacht for that pur�pose. U.S. v. One 1980 Bertram 58 Foot Motor Yacht, 876 F.2d 884 (11th Cir. 1989).�xe "U.S. v. One 1980 Bertram 58 Foot Motor Yacht, 876 F.2d 884 (11th Cir. 1989)."�





11th Circuit upholds INS forfeiture proceed�ings. (160) The Immigration and Naturaliza�tion Service had seized several vehicles be�longing to the claimants alleging that they were used for alien smuggling. The 11th Circuit held that due process does not require all probable cause hearings to be held within 72 hours of the claimant's request as the district court had ordered. When a forfeiture pro�ceeding is required by law (as it is under 8 U.S.C. §1324) or when the claim�ant has filed a claim for return and a cost bond, the due process notice requirement is fulfilled as long as such actions are timely filed. Due pro�cess timeliness require�ments are not to be de�termined by fixed, rigid standards. Gonzales v. Rivkind, 858 F.2d 657 (11th Cir. 1988).�xe "Gonzales v. Rivkind, 858 F.2d 657 (11th Cir. 1988)."� 





Alabama District Court. finds that claimant’s Fourth Amendment rights not violated in searches and seizure of truck and money as facilitating property and denies claimant’s motion to suppress. (160) Government alleged under Sections 881(a)(4) and (6) that claimant’s pickup truck and $4,620 in it were used to facilitate the sale of drugs. Claimant contended that the search of his house and consent search and seizure of the truck and money violated the 4th Amendment. He also disputed the canine alert to his car. Finding that the exclusionary rule applies to civil forfeiture proceedings, the court denied claimant’s motion to suppress. U.S. v. One 1993 Ford F150 Pickup, 148 F.Supp.2d 1258 (M.D.Ala. 2001).





California District Court holds notice of seizure provi�sions became effective Nov. 18, 1988. (160) The South�ern District Court of California held that the provisions for timely no�tice pursuant to expe�dited procedures in�volving conveyances for drug re�lated offenses (21 U.S.C. 881-1(b)) are effective as of the date of enactment, i.e. Nov. 18, 1988. Brantz v. U.S., 724 F.Supp. 767 (S.D. Cal. 1989).�xe "Brantz v. U.S., 724 F.Supp. 767 (S.D. Cal. 1989)."�





California District Court refuses to return boat despite lack of notice, where no defense to forfeiture. (160) Defendant pled guilty to conspiracy to import marijuana aboard a sail�boat. The DEA seized and administratively for�feited the boat in 1991, but only gave notice to a co-defendant, even though it was advised of defendant’s ownership interest. In 1995, defen�dant filed a §2255 motion attacking his convic�tion on the ground that the forfeiture of the boat was prior jeopardy. While the motion was pend�ing, defendant did not attack the forfeiture be�cause “he wanted the forfeiture to stand.” After the §2255 motion was denied in July 1996, defendant filed a Rule 41 motion for return of the boat. The district court held that forfeiture of the boat without notice to defendant violated due process and defendant’s Rule 41(e) motion was not barred by laches because the government suffered no prejudice from defen�dant’s delay. The court also ruled that a defen�dant need not have a meritorious defense to forfeiture to prevail on a due process motion, and the remedy was to allow defendant to contest the action on the merits. Nevertheless, in a final “Catch 22,” the court held that defen�dant’s admissions in his criminal case proved that the boat was forfeitable. Consequently, the court denied the motion for return of the boat. U.S. v. Marolf, 973 F.Supp. 1139 (C.D. Cal. 1997).�xe "U.S. v. Marolf, 973 F.Supp. 1139 (C.D. Cal. 1997)."�





Florida District Court finds no probable cause for forfeiture of aircraft. (160) The government seized and sought forfeiture of a private airplane as proceeds of narcotics trafficking. The only evidence adduced was: (1) The plane had been seized by the Colombian government for involvement in drug trafficking some years before, but there were no records of how it came to be released; (2) The plane was owned by a corporation controlled by one of the passengers, a man suspected of drug trafficking; (3) The pilot worked in the past for a known drug trafficker. These facts did not establish probable cause. U.S. v. One (1) 1980 Cessna 441 Conquest II Aircraft, 989 F.Supp. 1465, 11 Fla. Law Weekly Fed. D. 484 (S.D. Fla. 1997). �xe "U.S. v. One (1) 1980 Cessna 441 Conquest II Aircraft, 989 F.Supp. 1465, 11 Fla. Law Weekly Fed. D. 484  (S.D. Fla. 1997)."�





Illinois District Court denies request for pretrial hearing on validity of vehicle seizures. (160) Defendant was indicted for marijuana trafficking and the indictment sought criminal forfeiture of two vehicles, a pickup truck and a forklift, allegedly used in the drug operation. The government seized the two vehicles and moved for a restraining order under 21 U.S.C. §853(e)(A) to enjoin the defendant and others from selling or encumbering them. (The government agreed that such an order could only extend to the defendant or his agents and employees.) Defendant opposed the motion, and moved for the return of the vehicles, or in the alternative, for a pretrial hearing at which the government would be obliged to establish probable cause that he committed the underlying offense and that the vehicles were subject to forfeiture. The district court denied defendant’s motion for a hearing, which it characterized as an unjustifiable request for a “mini-trial.” In rare circumstances such a hearing might be granted, but only where a defendant raises a bona fide issue about whether the seized property could be traced to the alleged illegal conduct. That was not the case here. U.S. v. Lugo, 63 F.Supp.2d 896 (N.D. Ill. 1999).





Illinois District Court upholds Chicago vehicle forfeiture ordinances. (160) Plaintiffs sought compensatory and injunctive relief against the City of Chicago after their cars were seized pursuant to a city ordinance. Plaintiffs alleged that the ordinances “as written and enforced” violated the Fourteenth Amendment because they failed to provide a prompt post-deprivation hearing, and because they precluded an innocent owner defense during adminis�trative hearings. The district court found no due process violation. The challenged ordinances provide for a preliminary hearing within 24 hours of seizure, and a final hearing at a later date. The fact that the City has no obligation to notify record owners prior to the preliminary hearing was not dispositive. Officers are obliged to notify the person in control of the vehicle about the right to a hearing. This notice satisfies due process. The court cited Bennis v. Michigan, 516 U.S. 442, 116 S.Ct. 994 (1996), in finding that there is no substantive due process right to raise an innocent owner defense in a vehicle forfeiture case. Forfeiture of personal property used in crime has the salutary effect of encouraging owners to exercise care in supervising the use of their property by others. Towers v. City of Chicago, 979 F.Supp. 708 (N.D. Ill. 1997).�xe "Towers v. City of Chicago, 979 F.Supp. 708 (N.D. Ill. 1997)."�





New York District Court forfeits car for assisting alien entitled to enter U.S. to enter by illegal means. (160) The U.S. District Court in the Western District of New York granted summary judgment for the government in this case involving forfeiture of a Mercedes Benz for a violation of immigration law. Edward Chan was riding in a car owned by Kerry Hui when Chan tried to gain entry into the U.S. from Canada by falsely claiming to be a U.S. citizen and presenting forged documents in support of his claim. Ironically, Chan had a visa entitling him to enter the U.S. legally, but chose not to use it to avoid alerting U.S. officials that he had previously been deported from Canada. The district court held that the attempted entry under false pretenses was a violation of immigration law, that the owner of the car (Hui) had aided Chan in his illegal attempt, and that this made the car forfeitable under 8 U.S.C. §1324(a)(1) (A)(iv). The government submitted affidavits from INS inspectors detailing their encounters with Chan and Hui. Claimant Hui denied some of the inspectors’ assertions in his pleadings, but presented no countervailing evidence. The court granted summary judgment for the government. U.S. v. One 1989 Mercedes Benz, 971 F.Supp. 124 (W.D.N.Y. 1997).�xe "U.S. v. One 1989 Mercedes Benz, 971 F.Supp. 124 (W.D.N.Y. 1997)."�





Puerto Rico District Court estops govern�ment from changing its stipulated theory of recovery. (160) The government sought forfeiture of a sailboat on which an escaped English felon sailed himself to Puerto Rico, on the theory that the vessel had been used to smuggle aliens, in violation of 8 U.S.C. §1324(a)(1)(A)(i). Claimant, the felon’s wife, sought to recover the boat. When the government first filed its forfeiture complaint, it was not specific about either the facts or the legal theory upon which it based its for�feiture. After several pre-trial conferences, the govern�ment stipulated that it was proceeding on the theory that smuggling oneself was a proper ground for forfeiture of the vessel, and that it would not claim that the forfeiture rested on the smuggling of other aliens. Thereafter, the government attempted to disavow its stipulation, alleging that the Assistant U.S. Attorney lacked authority to make such a stipulation. The district court found the stipulation binding (despite considerable authority for the proposi�tion that the government may not be equitably estopped). The court then found that using a boat to enter the U.S. is the crime of illegal entry, 8 U.S.C. §1325, not alien smuggling under 8 U.S.C. §1324, and thus the vessel was not forfeitable. U.S. v. One 48 Ft. White Colored Sailboat Named “Libertine,” 24 F.Supp.2d 174 (D. P.R. 1998).�xe "U.S. v. One 48 Ft. White Colored Sailboat Named Libertine, 24 F.Supp.2d 174 (D. P.R. 1998)."�





